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L.S.P. ASSOCIATES

Charered Accountants
Independent Auditor’s Report
to the shareholders of
NLG Insurance Company Limited
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statememts of NLG Insurance Company Limited (“Company™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashadh 2078, the statement of profit or loss, statenwent
of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies (together
“financial statements™).

In our opinion. the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 Ashadh 2078, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards MFR5s).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responcibilities for the audis af the financial statements
section of this auditor's report.

We are independent of NLG Insurance Company Limited in accordance with The Institute of Chartered Accounts of
Nepal's (ICAN) Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Andit Matiers
Key audit matters are those matters thai,
the financial statements of the current
financial statements as a whole, and in

in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audi of
period. These matters were addressed in the context of aur audit of the
forming our opinion there on, and we deo not provide a separate opinion on

thise maiters,
Kev Audit Matters Response o K_t_}'_.twdit Maiters
L. Revenue Recognition Principal Audit Procedures

Premium Income comprises major part of revenue which
is recognized as income on isswe of the policy as
prescribed by the directives of Insurance Board, At the end
of each year, a proportion of net retained premiums are
provided for as an uncamed premium reserve to cover
portions of risk that have not expired at the reporting date.
The unearned premium is provided under the 1/365th rules
as per NFRS and has taken the higher of 50 % of Premium
or UPR underl/365th rule as per directives of Beema
Samiti.

Refer to accounting policy 3 - m(i) and kii) and the

dis¢losures in note 25

Our audit procedures consisted of focus on
Appropriatencss of process of issuing pelicies,
booking premium income, verification of
uncamed premium as per actuarial valuation
repodL.

Conclusion
The premium income recognition  and
presentation are fairly made.

2. Liability Adequacy
Liability Adequacy Test is performed to defermine

Principal Audit Procedures
Our audit procedures consisted verification of
ing claims, IBNR, IBNER, ecase

whether there is any overall excess of expected claims

Jwagal, Kepundale, Lalitpur, Nepal
F.0. Box No. 9222, Kathmandu, Nepal

Tel =577 1 8580434  Web www.lspacomanp
Fax + 87T 1 SP61867  Emall infof@ispa. comng




and deferred acquisition costs over uncarmed premiums,
If the carrying amount of the uneamed premiums is
inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss by setting up a provision for lability.
Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this
risk hased on the actuarial valuation report,

Refer to accounting policy 3 k(i) and the disclosures in
node 19 and 45(0),

reserves and verification of uneamed premium
as per actuarial valuation report,

Conclusion
The insurance contract liabilities are fuirly
providied,

3. Imsurance Claim
Insurance claim is the major arca of expenses for the
insurance companies. The Provision and payment of

Principal Audit Procedures
Our audit procedures consisted of focus on
Appropriateness of processing claim including

claims was considered to be one of the matters of maost
significance in financial statements,

surveyor report, claim paid and provision
made.

Conclusion
The recognition of claim paid, provision made
and it presentation are fairly made.

Refer 1o accounting policy 3 = k (ii) and the disclosures
in note 33

Responsibilitics of management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statement
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
1o enable the preparation of financial stalements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
EITOT,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and uslitg the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease aperation,
or has not realistic alternative bt to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company®s financial reporting process,

Auwditor's responsibility for the audit of financial statcments

Our objectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of financial stsement users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or
errer, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not détécling a material
misstaternent resulting from frawd is higher than for one resulting from erroe, a3 fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, I'I:IIE.r'E-FI'Eﬂl'II‘.E,II?Hﬂ, :Hh: override of internal control.,

it Y




=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desipgn audit procedures that
ar¢ appropriate in the ¢ircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity”s internal contral.

* Evalume the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by Management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncenainty exists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncenainty exists, we are required to draw attention in owr auditor's
report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the sudit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company 1o cease 1o continue as
agoing concern; and,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Management regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencics in internal control that we identify during our
awdit,

Report on matters required umnder Nepal Company Act, 2063
Pursuant to the legal requirement under section 11%(3) of Companies Act, 2063 with respect to our
responsibilities to report, we report that:

l. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which 1o the best of our knowledge and belicf
were necessary for the purpese of our audii;

2. In our opinion, the financial statements referred in this report have been prepared in accordance with
Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the company;

3. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by prevailing law have been kept hy the company so
far as appears from our examination of such books:

4. To the best of our information and according 1o explanations given to us and from our examination of the
books of account of the company necessary for the purpase of our audit, we have not come across cases
where Board of Directors or any employee of the company have acted contrary to the provisions of law,
of committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage 1o the company.

For LS Aisociares
Chamered Accountants

Gopal Kumar Shrestha
Pariner

Dated: 2078/10¢13
Place: Lalitpur, Nepal

UDIN number: 220128CAM0144EmZRu
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Statement of Financial Position

As at Ashadh End 2078

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes 2077/078 2076/077
Assets
Intangible Assets 4 845,137 949,317
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 20,652,942 19,486,840
Investment Properties 6 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 7 40,357,359 45,033,340
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in Associates 9 - -
Investments 10 2,565,168,805 2,231,606,827
Loans 11 17,278,899 34,192,248
Reinsurance Assets 12 1,469,281,346 1,124,812,220
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21 173,853,425 120,797,449
Insurance Receivables 13 278,508,880 110,471,314
Other Assets 14 408,949,436 591,536,429
Other Financial Assets 15 55,635,919 84,077,268
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 326,974,132 393,540,942
Total Assets 5,357,506,281 4,756,504,195
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 1,096,375,500 1,008,542,200
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) - -
Share Premium 17(c) 46,761,733 147,615
Insurance Fund 17(d) 1,025,030,886 924,204,939
Catastrophe Reserves 17(e) 51,239,383 78,598,817
Retained Earnings 17(f) 256,194,058 195,054,758
Other Equity 17(g) 129,864,895 101,093,985
Total Equity 2,605,466,455 2,307,642,315
Liabilities
Provisions 18 114,226,318 92,085,911
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 2,210,214,257 1,739,934,158
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - -
Insurance Payables 20 83,896,986 222,773,478
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - -
Borrowings 22 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 23 61,958,144 94,399,673
Other Liabilities 24 281,744,121 299,668,661
Total Liabilities 2,752,039,826 2,448,861,881
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,357,506,281 4,756,504,195
Bimal Prasad Wagle Bharat Bahadur Basnet Suresh Prasad Khatri
Chairman Director Director

Min Bahadur Samari Narendra Singh Bista Shalini Rana Shah
Director Director Director

Dr. Bharat Kumar Thapa Sunil Ballav Pant
Director Chief Executive Officer As per our report on Even Date

Prabhat A.C. CA Gopal Kumar Shrestha
Head - Finance & Accounts Partner
LSP Associates, Chartered Accountants
Date: 2022.01.27
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year Ended Ashadh, 2078

Restated Diluted EPS

Fig. in NPR
Particular Notes 2077/078 2076/077

Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25 2,053,788,516 1,753,687,182
Premiums Ceded 26 (1,388,885,140) (1,078,962,108)
Net Earned Premiums 27 664,903,375 674,725,074
Commission Income 28 336,633,367 314,318,196
Investment Income 29 193,782,625 195,419,647
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 - -
Other Income 32 28,906,920 12,266,838
Total Income 1,224,226,288 1,196,729,755
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid 33 1,318,570,185 897,485,153
Claims Ceded 34 (863,126,183) (490,519,458)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35(a) 404,036,419 147,728,783
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 35(b) (301,025,527) (108,043,904)
Net Claims Paid 558,454,894 446,650,574
Commission Expenses 36 63,416,971 51,770,298
Service Fees 37 6,877,037 6,463,744
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 219,586,941 213,593,862
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 5,652,992 6,075,978
Impairment Losses 40 23,593,622 10,386,248
Other Expenses 41 96,449,102 90,832,249
Finance Cost 42 - -
Total Expenses 974,031,560 825,772,953
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net 250,194,728 370,956,802
Profits of Associates Accounted for Using Equity
Method and Tax
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using 9 - -
Equity Method
Profit Before Tax 250,194,728 370,956,802
Income Tax Expense 43 90,303,943 111,480,302
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 159,890,784 259,476,500
Earning Per Share 50
Basic EPS 14.66 25.73
Diluted EPS -
Restated Basic EPS 23.67

Bimal Prasad Wagle
Chairman

Min Bahadur Samari
Director

Dr. Bharat Kumar Thapa
Director

Prabhat A.C.
Head - Finance & Accounts

Date: 2022.01.27
Place: Kathmandu
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Bharat Bahadur Basnet
Director

Narendra Singh Bista
Director

Sunil Ballav Pant
Chief Executive Officer

Suresh Prasad Khatri
Director

Shalini Rana Shah
Director

As per our report on Even Date

CA Gopal Kumar Shrestha
Partner
LSP Associates, Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year Ended Ashadh, 2078

Fig. in NPR

Particular

2077/078

2076/077

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

2,120,032,196

1,800,693,275

Commission Received 304,450,817 279,218,141
Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 863,126,183 490,519,458
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Others (to be specified)

Net realized gains or losses

Other Income 28,906,920 12,266,838
Change in Reinsurance Assets

Change in Insurance Receivables

Change in Other Financial Assets & Other Assets

Change in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 470,280,099 194,734,868
Change in Insurance Payables (138,876,492) 17,222,661
Change in Other Financial Liabilities & Other Liabilities (50,366,070) 31,501,259
Change in Provisions 22,140,407 1,731,794

Cash Paid

Gross Claims Paid

(1,318,570,185)

(897,485,153)

Reinsurance Premium Paid

(1,432,328,740)

(1,154,318,833)

Commission Paid (66,529,790) (63,343,134)
Service Fees Paid (18,006,933) (16,660,067)
Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (219,586,941) (213,593,862)
Other Expenses Paid (96,449,102) (90,832,249)

Change in Reinsurance Assets (344,469,126) (183,400,618)
Change in Insurance Receivables (168,037,566) (43,763,188)
Change in Other Financial Assets & Other Assets 211,028,341 (446,219,996)
Change in Insurance Payables

Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers

Income Tax Paid (81,299,738) (43,769,357)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] 85,444,280 (325,498,163)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets 305,360 474,658
Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets - -
Acquisitions of Investment Properties - -
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties - -
Rental Income Received - -
Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment 4,285,710 8,295,756
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - -
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Associates - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates - -
Purchase of Equity Instruments (547,805,483) (96,736,856)
Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments 550,617,530 65,956,690
Purchase of Mutual Funds (37,417,871) (73,245,740)
Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds 70,614,861

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares

Purchase of Debentures (106,811,000) (55,000,000)
Proceeds from Sale of Debentures 55,027,000 3,353,000
Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits (2,498,000,000) (1,200,000,000)

Maturity of Deposits

2,219,000,000

1,253,500,000

Proceeds from Finance Lease

Loans Paid

16,913,349

(89,934)

Proceeds from Loans

Interest Income Received

Dividend Received

Others (to be specified)

(9,412,940)
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Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]

(282,683,484)

(93,492,426)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid

Proceeds from Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital

134,447,418

368,135,950

Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

(3,775,026)

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Others (to be specified)

145,842,430

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]

130,672,392

513,978,380

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]

(66,566,811)

94,987,791

Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period

393,540,943

298,553,152

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period

326,974,132

393,540,943

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand

61,944

41,344

Cheques In Hand

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)

Balance With Banks

326,912,188

393,499,598

Bimal Prasad Wagle Bharat Bahadur Basnet
Chairman Director
Min Bahadur Samari Narendra Singh Bista
Director Director
Dr. Bharat Kumar Thapa Sunil Ballav Pant
Director Chief Executive Officer
Prabhat A.C.

Head - Finance & Accounts

Date: 2022.01.27
Place: Kathmandu
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Suresh Prasad Khatri
Director

Shalini Rana Shah
Director

As per our report on Even Date
CA Gopal Kumar Shrestha

Partner

LSP Associates, Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year Ended Ashadh, 2078

Fig. in NPR
Particular 2077/078 2076/077
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 159,890,784 259,476,500
Other Comprehensive Income
a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value - -
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for - -
using the equity method
Income Tax Relating to Above Items - -
Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments 38,787,015 (17,644,803)
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations (12,644,187) 4,681,904
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method
Income Tax Relating to Above Items (7,304,062) 3,888,870
Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 18,838,766 (9,074,029)
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 178,729,550 250,402,471
Bimal Prasad Wagle Bharat Bahadur Basnet Suresh Prasad Khatri
Chairman Director Director
Min Bahadur Samari Narendra Singh Bista Shalini Rana Shah
Director Director Director
Dr. Bharat Kumar Thapa Sunil Ballav Pant
Director Chief Executive Officer As per our report on Even Date
Prabhat A.C. CA Gopal Kumar Shrestha
Head - Finance & Accounts Partner

LSP Associates, Chartered Accountants
Date: 2022.01.27
Place: Kathmandu
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31,
2078 (15th July, 2021)

1

(a)

(b)

General Information

NLG Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated
on 2005 A.D. to operate non-life business segment of then National Life and General Insurance
Company Limited by splitting the National Life and General Insurance Company Limited to
comply with the provisions of the Insurance Act. The Company operates as general insurance
company and underwrites diverse portfolio of general insurance businesses under license
from Beema Samiti obtained on 2008/03/25 under the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company's shares
are listed on Nepal Stock Exchange.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
2022/01/27.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 2022/01/27 .
The financial statements are presented for approval to the upcoming annual general meeting
of shareholders.

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS 2018) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB),
as per the provisions of The Nepal Chartered Accountants Act, 1997. These confirm, in
material respect, to NFRS as issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board. The Financial
Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the
standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

Beema Samiti issued circular for reporting format of insurance companies in line with NFRS
on 2077/08/22 along with treatment of certain items in the specified reserves. The financial
statements are prepared in line with the stated circular, accordingly, are in compliance
with regulatory requirement of Beema Samiti. The financial statements also comply the
requirements of Companies Act 2063 and policy, procedures and directives of Securities
Board of Nepal.

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following
Assets & Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i.  Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial
valuation for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods &

services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of

whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

TqRT arftiR gfdagq 2009 /6z 11 9%
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into
Level 1, or 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements
are observable & the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

U Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or
Liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments
and assumptions affect the reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to
Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of
Income & Expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the
nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have
considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including
future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going
concern basis. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not
intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There is no changes in accounting policies in the current year and all the accounting policies
are consistenetly applied.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Nepal Accounting Standards Board has notissued any standards oramendments to the esistinf
standards. However, a number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards
and interpretations have been issued by IASB. Those new standards and amendments issued
by IASB after 2018 have not been considered.

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements
are set out below. The Company will adopt these standards after these standards are
mandatorily effective.

NFRS 9- Financial Instruments:

NFRS 9 states a logical principle base to classify financial assets and financial liabilities
which is driven by cash flow characteristics and the business model in which an assets or
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liability is held. Further this standard recommends the assessment of impairment based on
more timely recognition of incurred losses as referred in NAS 39 and entities are required
to account for incurred credit losses from the initial recognition of financial instruments.
Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used. The requirement of IFRS 9 is
Expected Credit Loss Model.

IFRS 9 became effective on 1 January 2018 and will have an effect on classification and
measurement of the Company’s financial assets. NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase
of work on replacement NAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities. NRFS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial Instruments
and rest of the provisions will be applied from July 16, 2021.

NFRS-15: Revenue from contract with customers:

The IASB issued a new standard for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue
recognition standards. The standard requires the following five step model framework to be
followed for revenue recognition:

a) Identification of the contracts with the customer
b) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract
c) Determination of the transaction price

d) Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as
identified in step b)

e) Recognition of revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
The new standard would be effective for annual periods starting from 1 January 2018
and early application is allowed internationally, ASB Nepal has made in effective from
July 16, 2021 from which the company will also apply this standard. The management is
assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from application of
IFRS 15.

NFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
internationally and is effective in Nepal from July 16, 2021. NFRS 16 is the new accounting
standard for leases and will replace NAS 17 ‘Leases’ and IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease’. The new standard removes the distinction between
operating or finance leases for lessee accounting, resulting in all leases being treated as
finance leases. All leases will be recognised on the statement of financial position with the
optional exceptions for short-term leases with a lease term of less than 12 months and
leases of low-value assets (for example mobile phones or laptops). A lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The main reason for this
change is that this approach will result in a more comparable representation of a lessee’s
assets and liabilities in relation to other companies and, together with enhanced disclosures,
will provide greater transparency of a lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed. The
standard permits a lessee to choose either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
transition approach.

NFRS 17- Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts was issued by the IASB on 18 May 2017 and has a mandatory
effective date of annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. It supersedes IFRS
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(h)

(a)

4 Insurance Contract. IFRS 17 with corresponding effective date has not been endorsed
by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) Nepal to be implemented from July 16, 2023. The
management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements, if IFRS 17 is
applied in future.

Carve-outs : NA
Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these
Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

i) Recognition

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and it can be used for more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

ii) Revaluation

After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably,
have been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are
being performed to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ
from its carrying amount as at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are
undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve.
However, the increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying
amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease is
recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is
transferred directly to retained earnings.

Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and
depreciation based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.

iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s
Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on Diminishing
Balance Method (DBM) based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the
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(b)

management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on DBM is categorised as stated
below:

List of Asset Categories "Rate of Depreciation (In %) for DBM"
Land Not Applicable
Buildings Not Applicable
Leasehold Improvement 25%
Furniture & Fixtures 25%
Computers and IT Equipments 25%
Office Equipment 25%
Vehicles 20%
Other Assets 15%

iv) Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future
Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or
Loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Animpairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk
specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major
plant and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in
Progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work
in Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets

i) Recognition

"Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement
of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
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(c)

economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

ii) Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible
asset shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all
of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is
expected generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortisation is recognised in income statement on diminishing balance method from
the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss."

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM/ DBM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories "Rate of Depreciation (In %) for DBM"
Softwares 20%
Licences NA
Others (to be specified) NA

iii) Derecognition

An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
Intangible Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

Investment Properties

Cost Model:

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For
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(d)

(e)

a transfer from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is the fair value at the date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the
Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to
the date of change in use.

Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits with
a maturity of three months or less.

Financial Assets
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification
of its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the
case of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisation of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets
carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
ii) Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)

A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these
financial assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These
financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other
comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at
FVTPL. These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement
of profit or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to
receive cash flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset,
the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where
the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains control
of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing
involvement in the Financial Asset.
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(f)

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Expected Credit Loss for Impairment of Financial Assets is applicable after implementation
of NFRS 9

In accordance with NFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’
(ECL) Model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair
Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from those default
events on the Financial Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date); or

Full Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the Financial Instrument)

For other assets, the Company uses 12 months Expected Credit Losses to provide for
impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant
increase in credit risk Full Lifetime ECL is used.

Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the
classification of its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial
Liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
issue of the Financial Liability."

ii) Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of
Financial Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of
these instruments.
iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from
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(8)

(h)

(i)

()

the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities
of the amount which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the
resinsurer's share of insurance contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that
occurred after the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not
receive all amounts due to it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably
measurable impact on the amount that the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a
reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces the carrying amount accordingly and is
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Equity
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that
they do not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

Reserves and Funds

i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount
other than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share
premium is allowed for distribution subject to provisions of company act & regulatory
requirement.

ii) Insurance Fund: The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50%
of the net profit every year as per Regulator's Directive.

iii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount
which is 10% of the net profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

iv) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the
amount of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per
regulator’s directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars
issued by regulatory authority.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined
benefit obligation resuting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between
the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of
changes in actuarial assumptions.

vii) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to
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a particular risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction, and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive
income.

viii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant &
equipments & intangible assets, other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged
to profit or loss.

ix) Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve, others
(to be specified)

Insurance Contract Liabilities

i) Provision for unearned premiums

Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but
relating to the unexpired term of coverage.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross
written premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the
unexpired period of the polices.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions

Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred
but not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together
with related claims handling costs. "

iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims,
the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial
position date.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on
assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates
show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post - Employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan
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The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as
per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contribution are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of
Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to
the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight
Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit
obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced
by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this calculation is limited
to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave
Encashment has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits
are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating
to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange

of these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates:

a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b)  when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

Revenue Recognition

i) Gross Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums are arrived at after deducting unearned premium reserves from
Direct Premium and Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted. Direct premiums comprise the total

premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into during
the reporting period. They are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to
periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro
rata basis.
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ii) Reinsurance Premium

Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the
policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect
of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that
relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred
over the term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and
over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been
presented as negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is
consistent with how the business is managed.

iii) Commission Income

Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then
they are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

iv) Investment income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated
by using the EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield
of the financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is
established.

v) Net realised gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and
losses on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are
calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost
and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted
significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate
the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects
the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant
insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business
against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences
customarily included among the risks insured against in the fire insurance business.

ii) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying
out contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection
with the use of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

iii) Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying
out contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.
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(p)

(a)

(r)

iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides
economic safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation
project, and machines and equipment in project operation.

v) Micro Portfolio - Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock.
It has great potential to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both
by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.
vi) Aviation Portfolio — Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability
for passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.
vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of
or damage to Cattle and crops.

viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio — All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above
categories fall under miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical
Insurances, Professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and
cash payments are disclosed as cash flows.

Leases

Finance Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalised at
the lower of the Fair Value of the Leased Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments. Lease Payments are apportioned between the
Finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The Finance Charge is allocated
to periods during the Lease Term at a constant periodic Rate of Interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as Operating Leases. Payment made under Operating Leases are
charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on a Straight Line Basis.

Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.
i) Current Tax

Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses
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relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income
after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets
& Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred tax Assets &
Liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax base of Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except
when the Deferred Income Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or
Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate to determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant
precaution and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However,
Management believes that chances of these matters going against the company are remote
and there will not be any probable cash outflow.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot
be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the
obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those
having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets

Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company
are not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.
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Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which
is the Company’s Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the
Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e.
Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
company by the Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial
Year.

For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is
adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares."

Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable
Income & Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset &
Liabilities are considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable
to any business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year Ended Ashadh, 2078

Fig. in NPR

Intangible Assets
Particulars Softwares Licenses Others Total

Gross carrying amount
As at Shrawan 1, 2077 2,536,870 - - 2,536,870
Additions 97,000 - - 97,000
Acquisition - - - -
Internal Development - - - -
Business Combination(to be specified) - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Revaluation - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2078 2,633,870 - - 2,633,870
Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at Shrawan 1, 2077 1,587,553 - - 1,587,553
Additions 201,180 - - 201,180
Disposals - - - -
Impairment losses - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2078 1,788,733 - - 1,788,733
Net Carrying Amount
As at Ashadh 2077 949,317 - - 949,317
As at Ashadh 2078 845,137 - - 845,137
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

6 Investment Properties

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Land

Building

Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions

Disposals

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2078

Depreciation and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2076

Depreciation

Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment reversal

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2078

Capital work-in-progress as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Additions

Capitalization

Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment reversal

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2078

Net Carrying Amount

As at Ashadh 31,2077

As at Ashadh 31,2078

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental
income

Profit from investment properties before depreciation

Depreciation

Profit from investment properties

(ii) Contractual obligations: There are no contractual obligations of the company.
(iii) There are no any restrictions on the realisability of investment properties or proceeds of disposal.

(iv) Fair value of investment properties:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Land

Building

Total

Estimation of fair value

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence of fair value is
current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company

consider information from a variety of sources including:

i) current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties

in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those differences,

ii) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,

iii) capitalised income projections based upon a property's estimated net market income, and a capitalisation

rate derived from an analysis of market evidence.

Since there are no investment properties of the company currently so, no fair value needs to be calculated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

Fig. in NPR
7 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening Balance 45,033,340 -
Intangible Assets - -
Property, Plant and Equipment (912,495) 1,953,061
Financial Assets at FVTPL - -
Financial Assets at FVTOCI (11,636,104) (11,757,015)
Provision for Leave Encashment 1,326,805 3,438,386
Defined Benefits Plan-Gratuity
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets - -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets 7,078,087 17,983,344
Tax Losses - -
Acturial (Gain)/ Loss on Remeasurement of Employee Benefit Obligation 4,332,042 (1,404,571)
Provision for Gratuity & Leave - -
Retirement Benefit - -
Agent Commission Expense-Deferred (1,576,293) (11,482,569)
Rl Commission Expense - Deferred 642,447 (889,543)
Rl Commission Income - Deferred (9,654,765) 27,921,814
Micro Insurance Premium Income - Deferred - -
Lease Equalization 271,888 2,375,990
Unexpired Risk Reserve 2,879,978 6,327,457
Outstanding claims 2,572,431 10,566,986
Reversal of Provision
Total 40,357,359 45,033,340
Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liablities)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1,2077 45,033,340 -
Charged/(Credited) to Profit or Loss 2,628,082 58,194,926
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income (7,304,062) (13,161,586)
As at Ashadh 31 2078 40,357,359 45,033,340

8 Investments in Subsidiaries

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries

Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries

Less: Impairment Losses

Total - -
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in UnQuoted Subsidiaries
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs............. _each of ................ Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs............. eachof ................ Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Information Relating to Subsidiaries
Particulars Percentage of Ownership

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments in Associates

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries

Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

TRt i gfdagq 009 / 0z 11 39




QAQHGIT Fo2A2eA TpoTall ([ATCS

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

Investment in Quoted Associates

Fig. in NPR

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Cost

Equity Method

Cost

Equity Method

........... Shares of Rs.............

........... Shares of Rs.............

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year

Total

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Cu

rrent Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Cost

Equity Method

Cost

Equity Method

........... Shares of Rs............. _each of .............

........... Shares of Rs............. _each of .............

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year

Total

Information Relating to Associates

Particulars

Previous Year

Name

Place of Business

Accounting Method

% of Ownership

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Income

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Company's share of profits

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

10 Investments

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures

282,600,000

230,816,000

i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal

Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit in "A" Class Financial Institutions 1,677,000,000 1,352,500,000
v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks

vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions 232,500,000 279,000,000
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions 41,500,000 40,500,000

viii) Others

Other Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions

Other Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions

Other Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments measured at FVTOCI

i) Investment in Equity Instruments

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

330,373,805

327,790,827

iii) Investment in Equity Instruments(Un quoted)

1,195,000

1,000,000

iv) Investment in Mutual Funds

v) Investment in Debentures

vi) Others

Investments measured at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments(Quoted)

iii) Investment in Mutual Funds

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

2,565,168,805

2,231,606,827
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be specified)

Total

b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

53,641,000

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

1,352,500,000

1,352,500,000

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

279,000,000

279,000,000

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions 40,500,000 40,500,000
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 1,672,000,000 1,725,641,000
11 Loans

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Loans at Amortised Cost

Loan to Associates

Loan to Employees

17,278,899

34,192,248

Loan to Agent

Others (to be specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

17,278,899

34,192,248

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to Associates

2,992,840

3,052,846

Loan to Employees
Loan to Agent - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 2,992,840 3,052,846
12 Reinsurance Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Reinsurance Assets on:
Unexpired Risk Reserves 592,531,550 549,087,951
Premium Deficiency - -
IBNR and IBNER Claim - -
Qutstanding Claims 876,749,796 575,724,269
Margin For Adverse Deviation - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 1,469,281,346 1,124,812,220

Note: Reinsurance assets are created for the Reinsurer's share of Unexpired Risk Reserve and Outstanding Claims as per the

reinsurance treaty entrered by the company.
13 Insurance Receivables

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurers 73,369,126 43,927,707
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 205,139,754 66,543,607
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 278,508,880 110,471,314
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 73,369,126 43,927,707
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 205,139,754 66,543,607
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 278,508,880 110,471,314
14 Other Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 3,173,273 2,800,615
Claim Advances - -
Advance To Suppliers - -
Staff Advances 11,092,811 11,532,660
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stock 539,519 642,557
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses 823,653 2,965,144
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 43,529,540 38,275,231
Finance Lease Receivables - -
Premium Receivable - -
Other Advance 335,524,771 528,900,361
Others - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Lease equalization - -
Prepaid Employee Benefits 13,457,179 5,755,622
Stock(Gold Coins) 808,690 664,239
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 408,949,436 591,536,429

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses 3,173,273 2,800,615
Claim Advances - -
Advance To Suppliers - -
Staff Advances 11,092,811 11,532,660
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stock 539,519 642,557
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses 823,653 2,965,144
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 43,529,540 38,275,231
Finance Lease Receivables - -
Premium Receivable - -
Other Advance 335,524,771 528,900,361
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 394,683,567 585,116,568

15 Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

22,197,162

22,494,328

Accrued Interest

Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits 33,545,407 1,257,365
Sundry Debtors - 40,254,574
Deposit in Citizen Investment Trust 60,348,821 56,932,850
Deposits in fund - -
Less: Impairment Losses (60,455,471) (36,861,849)
Total 55,635,919 84,077,268

Note: Accured Interest was previously disclosed clubbing the amount with the respective investment on which it is accrued
whereas from current year accrued interest is presented separately under other financial liabilities. Previous year figure has

been reclassified accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

a) Expected maturities within 12 months:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits - -
Accrued Interest 22,197,162 22,494,328
Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits 33,545,407 1,257,365
Sundry Debtors - 40,254,574
Deposit in Citizen Investment Trust

Deposits in Fund - -
Total 55,742,569 64,006,267

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash In Hand 61,944 41,344
Cheques In Hand - -
Bank Balances

i) Balance with "A" Class Financial Institutions 270,673,425 323,538,958
i) Balance with Infrastructure Banks

iii) Balance with "B" Class Financial Institutions 42,776,333 62,207,020
iv) Balance with "C" Class Financial Institutions 13,462,430 7,753,620
Less: Impairment losses - -
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 326,974,132 393,540,942
17a Share Capital

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

1,008,542,200

640,406,250

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

71,725,500

i) Share Issue- 161,078 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

16,107,800

368,135,950

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

1,096,375,500

1,008,542,200

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

Total

1,096,375,500

1,008,542,200

i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

15,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

Issued Capital:

1,02,46,500 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each (FY- 2076/77)
6,404,603 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each (FY- 2075/76)

1,024,650,000

1,024,650,000

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

10,963,755 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each (FY- 2077/78)
10,085,422 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each (FY- 2076/77)

1,096,375,500

1,008,542,200

Total

1,096,375,500

1,008,542,200

i) Preference Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Number of Shares

Percentage

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Promoters

Government of Nepal - - - -
Nepali Organized Institutions 5,481,878 5,042,711 50.00% 50.00%
Nepali Citizen - - 0.00 0.00
Foreigners - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (A) 5,481,878 5,042,711 50.00% 50.00%
Other than Promotors

General Public 5,481,878 5,042,711 50.00% 50.00%
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (B) 5,481,878 5,042,711 50.00% 50.00%
Total (A+B) 10,963,755 10,085,422 100.00% 100.00%
Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares

Percentage

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

National Life Insurance Co. Ltd 5,481,878 5,042,711 50.00% 0.50%
Mr. Siddheswor Kumar Singh 262,638 441,741 2.40% 0.04%
Mrs. Perma Rajya Laxmi Singh - 139,179 0.00% 0.01%
Mr. Rana Bahadur Shah 151,622 139,179 1.38% 0.01%
Rastra Banijya Bank 219,275 201,708 2.00% 0.02%
Tejeshwi Rajeshwori Rana 135,502 135,145 1.24% 0.01%
Deep Chand Aggarwal - 180,529 0.00% 0.02%
Prime Commercial Bank Limited - 116,991 0.00% 0.01%

17b Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Total

17c Share Premium

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2077 (PY: Shrawan 1, 2076) 147,615 147,615
Increase due to issue of shares at premium - -
Decrease due to issue of bonus sharess - -
Transaction costs on issue of share - -
Increase due to issue of unsubscribed right shares at premium 46,614,118 -
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (PY: Ashad 31, 2077) 46,761,733 147,615

17d Insurance Fund

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2077 (PY: Shrawan 1, 2076) 924,204,939 795,787,502
Additions 100,825,947 128,417,437
Utilizations - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (PY: Ashad 31, 2077) 1,025,030,886 924,204,939

17e Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2077 (PY: Shrawan 1, 2076) 78,598,817 65,541,422
Additions 9,980,098 13,057,395
Utilizations (37,339,532) -
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (PY: Ashad 31, 2077) 51,239,383 78,598,817
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

17f Retained Earnings

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2077 (PY: Shrawan 1, 2076) 195,054,758 78,344,286
Net Profit or Loss 159,890,784 259,476,500
Gain on Sale of Investment 65,172,166 17,040,159
Prior Year Income - -
Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings 18,838,766 (9,074,029)
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Transfer to reserves

Capital Reserves - -
Insurance Fund (100,825,947) (128,417,437)

Catastrophe Reserves 27,359,434 (13,057,395)
Regulatory Reserves - -
Fair Value Reserves (38,787,015) 17,644,803
Actuarial Reserves 12,644,187 (4,681,904)
Revaluation Reserves - -
Deferred Tax Reserves (2,628,082) (18,638,412)
Complusory Reserve Fund - -
Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Transfer on Disposal of Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Transfer on Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI - -
Transaction costs on issuance of shares - -
Issuance of Bonus Shares (71,725,500) -
Dividend Paid (3,775,026) -
Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Others-Bonus Share - -
Prior Period Adjustments (5,024,468) (3,581,813)
Transfer from Share Premium - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (PY: Ashad 31, 2077) 256,194,058 195,054,758
17g Other Equity

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Capital Reserves

802,797

802,797

Insurance Reserves

Regulatory Reserves 20,264 20,264
Fair Value Reserves 77,977,064 39,190,049
Actuarial Reserves (9,758,237) 2,885,950
Revaluation Reserves - -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - -
Other Reserves-Deferred Tax Reserve 60,823,008 58,194,926
Total 129,864,895 101,093,985

18 Provisions

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

15,883,969

11,461,286

i) Provision for Leave Encashment

ii) Defined Benefit plan - Gratuity 75,259,718 57,541,994

iii) Termination benefits

iv) Retirement Benefit Plan

Provision for tax related legal cases - -

Provision for non-tax legal cases 23,082,631 23,082,631

Others-Provision for Doubtful Debt on Sundry Items

Provison for Unreconciled Accounts

Provision for other expenses

Provision for Problematic Financial Institution

Total 114,226,318 92,085,911

(a) Additional Disclosure under of Provisions

Description Opening | Additions Utilised Reversed | Unwinding Closing
Balance During the | During the | During the of Balance

Year Year Year Discount

Provision for tax related legal cases - - -

Provision for non-tax legal cases - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave Encashment

1,321,980

611,615

i) Defined Benefit plan - Gratuity

iii) Termination benefits

8,448,322

2,513,319

iv) Retirement Benefit Plan

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax legal cases

Provision for other expenses

Provision for Problematic Financial Institution

Total

9,770,302

3,124,934.00

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Unexpired Risk Reserves 945,498,795 879,255,115
Premium Deficiency 21,575,933 21,091,523
IBNR Claims 85,875,232 65,045,892
QOutstanding Claims 1,157,264,297 774,541,628
Margin For Adverse Deviation - -
Total 2,210,214,257 1,739,934,158
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

20 Insurance Payables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers 65,650,501 205,527,917
Payable to Other Insurance Companies 18,246,485 17,245,561
Withdrawal Premiums - -
Withdrawal Claims - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 83,896,986 222,773,478

Payables within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers 65,650,501 205,527,917
Payable to Other Insurance Companies 18,246,485 17,245,561
Withdrawal Premiums - -
Withdrawal Claims - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 83,896,986 222,773,478

21 Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities 92,932,025 113,068,258
Income Tax Assets 266,785,450 233,865,707
Total (173,853,425) (120,797,449)

22 Borrowings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debenture

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debenture

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

23 Other Financial Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Payable to Agents

Payable to surveyors

17,420,112

12,694,793

Refundable Share Application Money

Payable to Insured

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

50,035

50,035

Short-term employee benefits payable

i) Salary Payables

ii) Bonus Payables

iii) Other employee benefit payable

7,806,368

6,836,299

Audit Fee Payable

Dividend Payable

Others- Long-term employee benefits payable

2,758,838

2,762,548

Gratuity

Provision for Bonus

32,731,546

70,395,232

Leave Encashment

Less: Investment in Citizen Investment Trust

Premium refundable

Payable to Insured

1,191,245

1,660,766

Deposits in fund

OYVS

Total

61,958,144

94,399,673

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Payable to Agents

Payable to surveyors

Refundable Share Application Money

Payable to Insured

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payable

i) Salary Payables

ii) Bonus Payables

iii) Other employee benefit payable

Audit Fee Payable

Dividend Payable

Others

Total

24 Other Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 26,096,862 15,443,354
VAT Payable 12,091,862 16,802,416
Deposit Premium 19,301,300 2,508,352
Deferred Commission Income - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 21,200,323 18,006,933
Lease liability - -
Deferred Income-Reinsurance Commission Income 60,890,163 93,072,714
Others Payables 133,000,450 145,618,127
Lease Equalization-Payable 8,826,255 7,919,968
Miscellaneous-Unidentified Insurance Premium 336,905 296,798
Total 281,744,121 299,668,661

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 26,096,862 15,443,354
VAT Payable 12,091,862 16,802,416
Deposit Premium 19,301,300 2,508,352
Deferred Commission Income - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 21,200,323 18,006,933
Lease liability N N
Deferred Income-Reinsurance Commission Income 60,890,163 93,072,714
Others(To be specified) 133,000,450 145,618,127
Total 272,580,960 291,451,896
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

44 Employee Retirement Benefits
a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans

Fig.in NPR

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021), the company has recognised an amount of NPR. 4,520,301 as an
expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with

Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Current service cost 1,809,031 824,171 - -
Past service cost (328,482) - -
Net interest cost (a-b) 15,765 1,018,161
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 4,502,827 4,373,837 - -
b. Interest (income) on plan assets 4,487,062 3,355,676 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 1,496,314 1,842,332 - -

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes
in DBO

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO 12,644,187 (4,681,904) - -
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate 1,071,091 (42,347) - -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 13,715,278 (4,724,251) - -

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 1,496,314 1,842,332 - -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI 13,715,278 (4,724,251) - -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 15,211,592 (2,881,919) - -

f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars = =

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 57,541,994 57,025,890 - -
Service cost 1,480,549 824,171 - -
Interest cost 4,502,827 4,373,837 - -
Benefit payments from plan assets (909,839) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience 12,644,187 (4,681,904) - -
Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End 75,259,718 57,541,994 - -

g) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 56,932,850 42,316,544 - -
Expected return on plan assets 3,415,971 3,398,023 - -
Employer contributions 569,328 11,218,283 - -
Participant contributions - - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - - - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - -
Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End 60,918,149 56,932,850 - -

qEr AT gfades R0/ 9z 114R
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h) Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset)

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Position

Particulars = =

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 75,259,718 57,541,994 - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets 60,918,149 56,932,850 - -
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in Statement of Financial 14,341,569 609,144 - -

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year

j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 609,144 57,025,890 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 1,496,314 1,842,332 - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI 12,644,187 (4,681,904) - -
Acquisition/ divestment (909,839) - -
Employer contributions - -
Change in Opening Fund Value 501,763 | (53,577,174) - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 14,341,569 609,144 - -

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period

Total remeasurements included in OCI

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss

1) Current/Non - Current Liability

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Current Liability 8,448,322 2,513,319 - -
Non - Current Liability 68,169,661 55,751,690 - -
Total 76,617,983 58,265,009 - -

m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars = =

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Within 1 year 8,448,322 - -
Between 1-2 years 3,788,367 - -
Between 2-5 years 25,715,229 - -
From 6 to 10 38,666,065 - -
Total 76,617,983 - - -

n) Plan assets

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

Government Securities

Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds)

Mutual Funds

Deposits

Cash and bank balances

Retirement Fund

Others (to be Specified)

Insurer Managed Funds

Total

100%

100%

TIRT aTftis gfdagq 2009 /65 1] %o
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0) Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in
Discount Rate

55,172,721

53,834,285

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in
Discount Rate

65,890,277

64,059,364

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in
Salary Escalation Rate

66,210,295

64,373,395

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in
Salary Escalation Rate

54,823,133

53,492,193

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in
Attrition Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in
Attrition Rate

p) Assumptions

Particulars

Employee
Benefit Plan

Any Other
Funded
Liability

Discount Rate

8.00%

Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels)

6.00%

Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover)

as per table

Mortality Rate During Employment

NALMT 2009

*NAL: Nepal Assured Lives Mortality

Employee Turnover Rates

15-Jul-21

15-Jul-20

Age Rate

Age

Rate

All ages 4.00%

All ages

4.00%

TRT arftiR Ffdagq 2099 /9% 11 €9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

45 Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature of claims, frequency and severity

and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either

received too little premium for the risks it has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims

are in excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an appropriate mix and spread of business

between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:

a) Product development

b) Pricing

¢) Underwriting

d) Reinsurance

e) Claims Handling

a) Product development:

The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:

- Fire

- Motor

- Marine

- Engineering

- Micro

- Aviation

- Cattle and Crop

- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate leading to natural disasters,

behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation of costs in respect of spares in the auto industrys.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability

of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified

in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and

frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further

enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments

that can negatively impact the business.

b) Pricing:

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used for pricing. The base rate represents

the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits, expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the

company's own historical experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and external

data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of the risks and available data.

Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

c) Underwriting:

The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the internal underwriting procedures. Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate

underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management staff, including those attached to the
distribution network.

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process. Under this principle underwriting is reviewed and approved by at least two
people ensuring effective control and transparency.B23

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate risk prior to acceptance

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of these covers

d) Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the reinsurers is in accordance with the

terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written by the reinsurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are

based on the cession made in respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made for the

loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation to meet claims emanating from policy

holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up

to the extent ceded to each reinsurer.

e) Claims handling:

Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:

i)  Claims are assessed immediately.

i) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working throughout.

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of reserves made in relation to Incurred But
Not Reported (IBNR) and

iv) Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims.

v) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

vi) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of these covers
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Sensitivities

The non-life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table below.
The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant, showing
the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in
determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on

an individual basis.

Changes in Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) on | (Decrease) on (Decrease) - (Decrease) - (Decrease) on | (Decrease) on (Decrease) - (Decrease) -

Gross Liabilities | Net Liabilities |Profit Before Tax | Profit After Tax | Gross Liabilities | Net Liabilities |Profit Before Tax| Profit After Tax
Average Claim Cost +10%| 131,857,018.50| 45,544,400.20| (77,681,356.47)| (54,376,949.53)| 89,748,515.30| 40,696,569.50| (44,146,751.22)( (30,902,725.85),
Average Number of Claims + 10%| (77,681,356.47)| (54,376,949.53) (44,146,751.22)| (30,902,725.85)
Average Claim Cost - 10%]| (131,857,018.50)| (45,544,400.20) 77,681,356.47| 54,376,949.53| (89,748,515.30)| (40,696,569.50)( 44,146,751.22| 30,902,725.85
Average Number of Claims - 10%) 77,681,356.47| 54,376,949.53 44,146,751.22] 30,902,725.85)

Note: Claim cost & incremental number of claims of respective years have been considered for above calculation.

Claim development table

The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and IBNR for each successive accident
year at each reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date.
Gross insurance contract outstanding claim provision

Year of incident >PY4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY1 Current Year Total

At end of incident year 891,092,146.3 | 891,092,146.3
One year later 205,924,078 205,924,078
Two year later 109,898,523 109,898,523
Three year later 0
Four year later 0
More than Four years 36,224,782 36,224,782
Current estimate of cumulative claims 36,224,782 0 0| 109,898,523 | 205,924,078 | 891,092,146.3 | 1,243,139,529
At end of incident year 0
One year later 0
Two year later 0
Three year later 0
Four year later 0
More than Four years 0
Cumulative payments to date 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gross insurance contract outstanding 36,224,782 0 0| 109,898,523 | 205,924,078 | 891,092,146.3 | 1,243,139,529
claim provision

Net insurance contract outstanding claim provision

Year of incident >PY4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY1 Current Year Total
At end of incident year 262,631,029
262,631,029

One year later 60,691,874 60,691,874
Two year later 32,390,323 32,390,323
Three year later -
Four year later -
More than Four years 10,676,507 10,676,507
Current estimate of cumulative claims 10,676,507 - -1 32,390,323 | 60,691,874 | 262,631,029 | 366,389,733
At end of incident year -
One year later -
Two year later -
Three year later -
Four year later -
More than Four years -
Cumulative payments to date - - - - - - -
Net insurance contract outstanding 10,676,507 - -| 32,390,323 | 60,691,874 | 262,631,029 | 366,389,733
claim provision

f) Reserving

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.
i. Net IBNR is calculated by using Paid Chain Ladder, Incurred Chain Ladder and Expected Loss Ratio basis method as appropriate
ii. Unexpired Premium Reserve has been calcualted using 1/365th Method or 50% of net premium whichever is higher
iii. Premium Deficiency Reserve has been calculated by considering the Net unearned Premium Reserve multiplied by the excess of the

Combined Loss Ratio over 100%.
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The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year end has been measured as
insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Gross Insurance | Reinsurance Assets Net Liabilities Gross Insurance Reinsurance Net Liabilities
Liabilities Liabilities Assets

Fire 301,337,983.07 259,033,966.20 42,304,016.87 199,430,403.00 176,064,830.00 23,365,573.00
Motor 960,017,426.13 452,418,983.12 | 507,598,443.01| 905,765,179.00| 284,779,958.00| 620,985,221.00
Marine 47,829,055.20 35,117,458.58 12,711,596.62 16,137,389.00 178,639,369.00 | (162,501,980.00)
Engineering 420,072,944.70 372,306,348.93 47,766,595.77 | 365,269,616.50 | 322,183,899.50 43,085,717.00
Micro 158,666,135.09 142,900,073.00 15,766,062.09 15,995,263.00 9,222,800.00 6,772,463.00
Aviation 23,837,464.94 7,235,141.94 16,602,323.00 20,996,877.50 (555,620.50) 21,552,498.00
Cattle and Crop 209,610,643.96 137,808,266.57 71,802,377.39 122,293,744.00 82,371,410.00 39,922,334.00
Miscellaneous 88,842,604.09 62,461,107.77 26,381,496.31 94,045,685.50 72,105,573.50 21,940,112.00
Total 2,210,214,257.19 1,469,281,346.13 | 740,932,911.06 | 1,739,934,157.50 | 1,124,812,219.50 615,121,938.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)
46 Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the
Financial Statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has classified its
financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Previous Year
FVOCI Amortised Cost

Current Year
FVOCI Amortised Cost

Level

Particulars FVTPL FVTPL

Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments

- 331,568,805 - - 328,790,827 -

i) Investment in Mutual Funds

iii) Investment in Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial Institutions

iv) Investment in Debentures 282,600,000 - - 230,816,000 -
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal - - - - - -
Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

W

==
\

vi) Fixed Deposits

1,951,000,000

1,672,000,000

vii) Others (to be specified)

Loans

17,278,899

34,192,248

Other Financial Assets

55,635,919

84,077,268

326,974,132

393,540,942

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - -
Total Financial Assets - 614,168,805 | 2,350,888,950 - 559,606,827 2,183,810,458
Loans and Borrowings 3 - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 3 - - 61,958,144 - - 94,399,673
Total Financial Liabilities - - 61,958,144 - - 94,399,673

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.
(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value

a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of financial instruments is determined using appropriate technique.
(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes. Discussion

on valuation processes and results are held at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:

a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material
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(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and - - - -
Financial Institutions
ii) Investment in Debentures - - - -
i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ - - - -
Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit 1,951,000,000| 1,951,000,000( 1,672,000,000| 1,672,000,000
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Loans
i) Loan to Associates - - - -
ii) Loan to Employees 30,736,078 17,278,899 39,947,870 34,192,248
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Assets 55,635,919 55,635,919 84,077,268 84,077,268
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - - - -
Loans and Borrowings
i) Bond - - - -
ii) Debenture - - - -
iii) Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
iv) Bank Overdraft - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 61,958,144 61,958,144 94,399,673 94,399,673
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 61,958,144 61,958,144 94,399,673 94,399,673

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-
term nature.

47 Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.
i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their payment obligations
to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs a financial loss because
insured does not pay the premium and a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the
Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company’s risk
committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsuranceis placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided by entering into
agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness
of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties i.e. reinsurers based on their international rating so as to keep
the credit risk at minimum

d) The risk under a policy is covered only if the premium amount is paid. Hence, the risk is limited to the premium only and
is not considered significant.
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Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Asset | Gross Expected | Expected | Carrying
. Group | Carrying | probability Credit Amount
T ST Amount | of Default Losses After
Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly - - - -
increased since initial Loss allowance measured at 12 - - - -
recognition months expected credit losses - - - -
Credit Risk has significantly - - - -
increased and not credit
. . Loss allowance measured at
impaired life-time expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly P - - - -
increased and credit impaired
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2078
Asset Gross Expected Expected Carrying
. Group Carrying | probability Credit Amount
LGRS Amount of Default Losses After
Provision

Credit Risk has not significantly
increased since initial
recognition

Loss allowance

measured at 12

months expected

credit losses

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit
impaired

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and credit impaired

Loss allowance
measured at life-
time expected credit

losses

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Particulars

Measured at

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

12 months
expected credit
losses

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit
impaired

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and credit
impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2076 -

Changes in loss allowances

Write-offs

Recoveries

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2077 -

ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there is also a liquidity risk associated
with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Assets:

The table below summarises the Company's Financial Assets into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their Contractual
Maturities for all Financial Assets.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Upto 1 Year 1Yearto5 More than | Upto 1 Year 1Yearto5 | More than
Year 5 Year Year 5 Year
Investments 239,943,000 1,725,641,000| 177,175,000
1,714,657,000

Reinsurance Assets 1,469,281,346 - -1 1,124,812,220 - -
Other Assets 347,157,101 14,265,869 541,075,578 6,419,861
Other Financial Assets 55,742,569 - - 64,006,267 -
Total Financial Assets (A) 3,586,838,016 | 254,208,869 -| 3,455,535,065| 183,594,861 -
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Maturity of Financial Liabilities:

The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their Contractual
Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Upto1lYear | 1Yearto5 | More than | Upto1Year| 1Yearto5 | More than
Year 5 Year Year 5 Year

Loans and Borrowings - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities -| 61,958,144 - 94,399,673

Total Financial Liabilities (B) -| 61,958,144 - -1 94,399,673 -
Net Financial Assets
The table below summarises the Company's Net Financial Assets into Relevant Maturity Groupings

particulars Current Year Previous Year

Upto 1 Year | 1Yearto5 Year Total Upto 1 Year | 1Yearto5 Year Total

Net Financial Assets (A -B) 3,586,838,016 192,250,725| 3,779,088,741| 3,455,535,065 89,195,188| 3,544,730,253
Cumulative Net Financial Assets 3,586,838,016 3,779,088,741 -| 3,455,535,065 3,544,730,253 -

iii) Market Risk

al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency
and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its
reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as
such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount payable to foreign reinsurer is settled in either
Indian Rupees or American Dollars. The Company doesnt adopt any measure to mitigate foreign currency risk as the company
deems the risk to be insignificant.

b1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company’s instruments except call accounts are fixed interest rate instruments. Interest on fixed
interest rate instruments is priced at inception of the financial instrument and is fixed until maturity. The Company mitigates
interest rate risks by diversifying portfolios to include a multitude of different instruments.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 1% which is
reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following effect on the Profit After Tax.

particulars Current Previous
Year Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* 1,166,686 1,212,277

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* (1,166,686) | (1,212,277)

* Holding all other Variable Constant

c1) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from investments held by the
Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value through OCI.

c2) Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and impact on OCl for the
period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables
held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the index.

. Current Previous
Particulars Year Year
NEPSE - Increase By 1%* 2,312,617 | 2,294,536
NEPSE - Decrease By 1%* (3,303,738) | (3,277,908)

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income.

48 Operation Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all
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operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the
Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and
reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as
changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting

process.
49 Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and

benefits for other stakeholders, and
b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

c) To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the policyholders,

regulators and stakeholders.

d) In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue bonus shares or issue new shares

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Beema Samiti to attain a stipulated minimum paid up
capital of NPR 1 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid up capital is NPR 1,096 Billion

Dividend
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
(i) Dividends recognised
Bonus Shares of FY 2075-76 71,725,500
- 71,725,500

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
Bonus Shares of FY 2076-77 109,637,550 -
Cash Dividend of FY 2076-77 5,770,397 -
Bonus Shares of FY 2077-78 120,601,305
Cash Dividend of FY 2077-78 6,347,437

242,356,689 71,725,500

Note: Board meeting held on 2022/01/27 has decided to propose 10% Bonus Shares on the outstanding share capital as on
date and dividend tax thereon as cash dividend subject to approval of upcoming AGM. The amount of Bonus Shares proposed

is NPR 120,601,305 and cash dividend is NPR 6,347,437.
50 Earnings Per Share

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Profit For the Year 159,890,784 259,476,500
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds - -
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share 159,890,784 259,476,500
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For Basic 10,903,351 10,065,287
Earning per Share

Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:

i) Dilutive Shares - -
i) Options - -
iii) Convertible Bonds - -
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for Diluted - 10,085,422
Earning Per Share

Nominal Value of Equity Shares 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share 14.66 25.73
Diluted Earnings Per Share

Restated Basic Earnings Per Share 23.67
Restated Diluted Earnings Per Share
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)
c) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segmental Profit 295,919,311 382,372,881
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (6,075,978) (5,901,792)

Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization

Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures (175,957,249) (130,567,708)
Add: Unallocable Other Income 136,308,644 125,053,422
Less: Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax 250,194,728 370,956,802
d) Reconciliation of Assets
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Assets 1,747,790,226 1,235,283,534
Intangible Assets 845,137 949,317
Property, Plant and Equipment 20,652,942 19,486,840
Investment Properties
Deferred Tax Assets 40,357,359 45,033,340
Investments 2,565,168,805 2,231,606,827
Loans 17,278,899 34,192,248
Current Tax Assets (Net) 173,853,425 120,797,449
Other Assets 791,559,487 1,069,154,639
Total Assets 5,357,506,281 4,756,504,194
e) Reconciliation of Liabilities
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Liabilities 2,294,111,243 1,962,707,636
Provisions 114,226,318 92,085,911
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Other Financial Liabilities 61,958,144 94,399,673
Other Liabilities 281,744,121 299,668,661
Total Liabilities 2,752,039,826 2,448,861,881
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)

52 Related Party Disclosure
(a) Identify Related Parties
Holding Company:
Subsidiaries:

Associates:

Fellow Subsidiaries:

Key Management Personnel:

National Life Insurance Company Limited

Name Relationship

Mr. Bimal Prasad Wagle Chairman

Mr. Bharat Bahadur Basnet Director

Mr. Suresh Prasad Khatri Director

Mr. Min Bahadur Samari Director

Mr. Naresh Singh Bista Director

Ms. Shalini Rana Shah Director

Dr. Bharat Kumar Thapa Director

Mr. Sunil Ballav Pant Chief Executive Officer

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Short-term employee benefits 15,873,099 18,147,623
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Total 15,873,099 18,147,623

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances

5,179,250

5,136,250

Performance based allowances

i) Employee Bonus

3,121,152

1,374,492

ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions

iii) Incentives

Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance

i) Accident Insurance

iii) Health Insurance (including family members)

Total

8,300,402

6,510,742
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(c) Related Party Transactions:

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Premium Earned

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Commission Income

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31,2078 (July 15, 2021)

Rental Income

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Interest Income

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31,2078 (July 15, 2021)

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Premium Paid

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Commission Expenses

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31,2078 (July 15, 2021)

Dividend

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Meeting Fees

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

1,933,000

1,933,000

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

2,798,000

2,798,000

Allowances to Directors

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Others (to be specified)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Other Receivables (to be Specified)

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Payables including Reinsurance Payables

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Other Payables (to be Specified)

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued...)
53 Leases

(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 year to 7 years for 2077 and 2078 . Non-cancellable periods range
from one month to three months. The leases are renewable by mutual consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses
for operating leases recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is NPR 29,276,797 (Ashadh 31, 2077: NPR

27,797,998).
Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year 29,470,509 27,165,439
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 69,301,002 79,588,194
iii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability at the end of the year is

given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments

Less: Effect of Discounting

Finance lease liability recognised

(b) Leases as Lessor
(i) Operating Lease:
Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below:

Future Minimum Lease Income

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year

i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company has given assets under finance leases. At the year end receivables under finance lease agreements fall due as

follows:
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Gross Unearned Net Gross Unearned Net
Investment Finance Investment Investment Finance Investment
Income Income

i) Not Later than 1 year - - _

ii) Later than 1 year and not - - -
later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years - - -

Total - - -

54 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Investment Properties

Total
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55 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts
a) Income Tax -
b) Indirect Taxes - -
c) Other (to be Specified) -
Total - -
56 Events occuring after Balance Sheet

There are no events which require adjustment to the figures appearing in the financial statements as at Ashad end, 2077.
57 Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Reinsurance Receivables - -
Investments in equity - -
Fixed Deposits - -
Property, plant and equipment - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total - -
58 Miscellaneous

(i) Allamounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
59 Others
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NLG Insurance Company Limited
Annexure Il
Minimum Disclosure in Management Report
(Year Ended Upto Ashadh 31, 2078)

Information related to Non Life Insurer

Under this title following matters shall be disclosed

Date of establishment: 08/06/2004

Insurer licence date: 25/03/2008

Insurance business type, nature: General Insurance Business

Date of commencement of business: 08/06/2004

The following matters have been approved by the Board of Directors of the company:
The license issued by Beema Samiti to carry on the general insurance business is valid.
The company has paid tax, service charges, fine & penalties to be paid under relevant laws and regulations.
"The share structure of the company is as follows:

Promoter holding: 51%

Public holding: 49%

The share holding structure of the company during the current year has been changed as proposed on 14th
AGM held on 2077/08/05 and approved by Beema Samiti Letter KA.SA.81 (077/078) Cha No 2260 dated
2077/09/12."

The solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti has been maintained by the company. Currently, the
solvency ratio is 4.45 times.

a) The financial amounts of assets as mentioned in Statement of Financial Position (SOFP) are not overstated
than it's fair value.

b) The assets are measured at historical cost other than financial assets which are measured at amortised cost
or fair value as per appropriate accounting policy.

The investments made by the company are in line with prevailing laws.

Number of claim settled within the year 2077-78 is 8,368. The number of outstanding claims as at Ashad end,
2078 is 6,078. The time frame to settle the outstanding claims is 2 to 3 months.

The company has complied with the provisions of Insurance Act, 2049, Insurance Regualtion, 2049, Company
Act, 2063, Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and other prevailing laws and regulations.

The appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted by the company.
The company's financial statements as at Ashad end, 2078 are presented truly and fairly.

The Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for
identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

The Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.
The internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the company's business.

The company has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049, Companies Act, 2063,
related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or with any entity in
which insurer's director has interest.

No penalty has been levied by Beema Samiti during the current financial year.
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3IcadTE YT 4G | aT&aias JUTH (Actual Result) Seaifad aTE 9waT M7 g9 94ag | of@rgd AT T
F TS =Tl SFafdsr are qfger Fatmr g8 an T g o

fear gwafa s Hifa
feR geafdes UfqeTae® Ao ATdTuIe! STETAT J@rge T ANd HedHT 219 HE T4 Alel Wl THAAT S@ralH g |

feerr wrafaeedr @dT TH dfgedl AfGAT MG BT HE T A R | FEEIR] RIT qEITTeRdT awTI=er
TAEHTE START A (Effective Useful life) &1 STETTAT FaiRer TeT (#7 aifHeT 218 FE1 33T Ueal Hed Ul
(Diminishing Balance Method) T ATITTAT @IS T Hfd sTaeFae TTH g |

#.4. | feax awafast fqawon g gl T gfaesn
q G JAT RRe=e %
3 FEATT T ¥
3 HEIEL JAT AT Fiqel JTHI 4
¥ qT TE
(%) faeed aweamR R0
£ SEIUIEE 30
% fsT Eleg qvuta Y
© a7 grafq 9¥

FEOAIS ATERAT (IR qFafdees aqadl 99 Tl (Impairment Test), ST &S T SA114% A9 ATAE T
HTET YT T A9 SETAT AT qeafde® el e auar dqa@d T Afq fausr g |

ifia AT wvafoee @t Jrarsa Hifd
FEIAIT G TR g X el avafdes Gofisa i Hifq et g |

Tl ATt gfe@e 3099 /95 11 999
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9. AIHT AT T HT FGEAT At (Provision for Income Tax and Deferred Tax) :
&) A FT
FFIAA ATFT TT 04 T ATTH (TIHATEA 048, ATHR ATTHTH AT T4 Afq A g |

@) T H] :

YT JETHT &, ATER GFI(T T9T QTIcaehl ATITHT T TRUS! HLpl d@rgd TUH g | fafaa faawr T s
AT fi = AU FX U g TE ARTE FIhATS ©NH H G /IcaAT d@rge TRUH G | @& HT
qHT / AICaeTg ATaaTd qaT &Il THITHT AW Tl AR GThT ATATTAT JILHTIITHTT TITHT G | T AT
JAT AT AR Afete T HTTH o e e w3 gwta q9r aifdcadrs guEeE (Net Off) TR e
AT ATHATTHT &R ARTHT T qAT A A= A@rgd T A [AgUPr § | WT FLH Qg H
T GOIAT WUAT &7 THH AR A AMSHNS (G @ ol WA FT ST HT @eT T a1 &1 P
THH WA HT qeh AT JASIHT AT JANT T A @bl g |

% ST d@reA A

(F) CE FEATHA / FOTTAT A A@TA A

@) frmr athfaer o fTaer arewd HEfrer auitas aeeerd a=aqs a1 HYA a7 T97d Gl THET JTed
FHUAT TRUHN T ATFT Ged (Face Value) a1 U e Hell S 6dl & Gl qeddl a@lge T4 Al
fersuspr |

() @G (9) AT Ioci@ AU FHINIH TUH! AAHIH ATFd T (Face Value) F=T I Hedl a¢! WUHT T dal T
FHATS AR & AT ATITAT FATT ATHIHT Al 5 THIIITE ATITHT (Pro-rata Basis) STIHT THTAT
S T it feaguer g )

(3)  @UE () HT Jooi@ TNC FHINH TSl AT A5 A7 (Face Value) T=T TR Hedl FHH WUHT T Fldk
THHATS AN At {9 FAATqE AT (Pro-rata Basis) @THIETE AT TIAT A@IgA T A (AU
Al

(¥)  @UE (1) AT o1 TNC SHITHE! = T AT HIGAD AQTEA TS Hed AT oA Hed HH g TTAT &l
WWWW(Provision)Tﬁ?ﬁﬁmal

(@) &% qur facfim dearnr qedt fetumn s dmrea Hif
frar afafaer faxir faemor arawdt fEferer st S qor faxdimr gwrsr gedt e ar s @ S
T ATTATERAT TTRT AMATS AlaT THTAT J@TZUH F |

M  ufsers fafaes FoRt SeaT @t darea Hifa
afea fAfidg Fromiel Feied ST TRUST @ 90 GeqAT J@rgd T A [[qeuer g | o
TRUST AMHIS] A@TEA TR Hed W1 TSR qed FH g1 TUAT AT Hildh THH Ga Fa&T (Provision)
T i feguer g )
qfectas [AfdE FFIA! JRATTH TATHT AT TS AT TAAT PIAA STAITH AT STATCAT =Tk AHTHT
S e fAfde FFIA FRER T Soed 99 9ol ffaer 9 97§70 & aiae owd GedH
FaTee T A a¥ qfeg T ANHIETS IR HedHT $@TE |1 AT e T (Provision) T At faguet
3
At [AHeE FFIATal Foied SATHT AT TRUH! AR JATAd A AN [garas asiiia gHare g
T AT TSR AT (Provision) T i feaguar & |

(@) afsew fafrds Fadia TG TRET FOTHEEAT T q@rEA AT

gfeetsr fafee FFaidl ST TH HUTTREH] XU AMHIars dfsd Hed (Face Value) aT U Hed Hed
S Bl & HIE AW o@rga T AN Euh g | afgd qed WweT uie Wod dgl WUHT &l ad] THdTs
AT &1 ATl ATITHAT AATT MG dfg 47 FHIAIGS ATITHAT (Pro-rata Basis) W SHIANT
T fifq ffsuer g T afsq qed w1 RS Hed FH WUAT AW BiF (GHATS ANl satg i et
ATITAT (Pro-rata Basis) @WHIATE ATAHI €A F@IEA T A [TZUH G | oH@TFT TLH HedHw=T aul 7o
FY qTAT Tl THW I FIET (Provision) T T foTguat & |

TRl ATt gfe@es 099 /93 11 195
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90.

1.

R.

®.

%.

M.

(F) AT FFOAMT THT A FA@rga A

AT FiHfdaTe ST I q7 FFIAEEHT T AHIATs I Hed |l J@rgd T4 A1fd [deual g |
HIE Tgag qEEWE A
faslt W5 WP FRAREEH d@TgA el Midel T=ad [T T T0H G | faaefl 7emH Wl avdta T aTicae
Afed® HISTAH! HeATST aUTHT FAH Wl (a0 a8 FATER T H6e Iea HLheTs AR Arear feamas
dq@rgd T AT R g |
FATEEER AT JETsd A
FrATeTes AR AT UF T fr afhfaer e auii e e aiitae ST derg TRuH g | a¥ e g
fafq =T ST W@ R I O (i 9fg TuemT afgedr ffaer fTaed areTl s T T SEeed UF
Y W= qE FATH! AN THAS ITq FOAT Gleed] qUHl AT B ATST AHTSIedh AT a@rgd T4 diehl el
THH GUETHT FIHT Z@TIT AT fTuat g |
TF FFIAIS GASHT SHR T TG 9T g AHTeTed AT TEHEl (Accrual) SATTCHAT S@Tge TR g |
TASTHT FHIHTA AT @3 Af
ST HHTT AR TEHET (Accrual) STUTAT e@TgT THRUH g |
q AT A@TZA AT Srgweg Afe -

FEA AT GTed T 2T qAT A7 ATRHIATE FEATEl (Accrual) STETRHT T9T ATATT ATFETAT I gTed
T NI T TTH (Right to receive) HATITAT @IS T w1 FHITH (i Faor geawedl el awiaa
FA ATRTIATE ATRT A3 feqre a7 o9 27 fearas 9K JTER aighis T 3 |

FAT AGTEA A

FEAAIH] FHA [AEHTEAR] ATTTAT @l GaTT AUl Follels Al g TAeq ATIR AUS] GUSHT TTaT THHHAT
d@iHT AU G | T FoAl AFA g GATq AT TATAT i ATAT aaL HH Fa&dT (Provision) T Hifd
fergueRT 3 |

TAEATA T drghig Hifd ¢

Frar afafaer faxia faawor gvaedi (e sy ® e @d@ 0% THH ATR A@E feqew @9
I@rs didhl THAATS q¥irad SHT ] T AHTSeHHA] AR BT FENN g AT THAATS g AT
TEAFIET AT AT Fa 07 TGN A A fEarear aigwie T Aiq ey TgH 3 |

AT T AT @ A@TSA A

FFIAIA ThTA wsﬂ¢¢|6ﬁmmﬁwwmwaﬁwaﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁwaﬂaﬁmwammmﬁ
EEIrEd ?'TTﬁTﬂlcl‘Meh TR AT AMETT @ GHET T A frguear g | q% el wghied AT q@aEe a
FUATAA T WW&WTWWWWW&T?ﬁWW&I

i Tl S arfaea saaedn dwETee Hifd
(®) HSAT AOERT a¥ SAAHILHAT AATH (IBNR) FHT I A0 U qq€dqT J@T3A & v Tl A

ST HUH! T ATFHIAAT TATHT (IBNR) ST I aT9q @Micd aedr dar aiafae Heem o an e
FUHT AecT TEA IR T afeel ST Tl a9d afcasl Q4 Fiaerael 8 qg T d@rga T A g
3

(@) & I arud e S AEreA A

AT AU Avcd FFH STRIAT T ATeh ST STl AT aMdcd STael ST U9 R0%%, & &6 IR q47 AT
framaett 0%, # W QUQ)(F) FT FFwT FHINH S0 TRcaH 994 FITedad g7 ThH SAawr TRUH g |

g AR atgwig Aifd
AT T 0% HT THT IR, [FFUATERAT R0%Q H R QUET) TAT SEAT FrATTH! A faaeer graedt fetireer e
TIRT aftiR Ffdagq 209 /95 11 998
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1%

9.

9z.

R.

SHINTH =<hT ol aaY THUHFT @& ATRIH 40 FIAeTde g4 THH SATHT HITHT JIRUH! G, THATAL ATH-A 6T
fEqTerdT SMUFT @8 ATHRE YO YT THAATS Yciush [Hraaam! SHTHTHT [qries! X AT aiShis TRUH g |
T HTFET TUHT ST ZAIH] EHAT GbT AL T H A6 TTHT ST FATERHT A AR TSHIS TTH 3 |

Frar afafaer o faawr araed el aEwen auEtae S famEd 0% &1 | 9 (1) FEeE g
ATHRTH T=TE i THH @ AT, 0%3/%¥ TEHAT @Sl TNRUH SISl qa7 e 9.3 Iwiaa @1 s

NN

SArETels T SHRIST SETed AT UE g | a9 NdEaT Wbt THW AT AT GASTTRT AT IqeTe Webl G |
FHAT UM, faar qan s qfqar ama s i
U< (Gratuity)

GEA @H @l 8 GEE] TEH ANUE AT BT Aid @id SIS A a1 T4 T &l AEre. 3o
TS THA FFIAIA UG FAEITATIT AT I THAAT AN T i 50 g |

=9 FW (Provident Fund) :

FEIATH Gz TAT B ANGTHH DAL TWHl G T ATAR BHATIHT TATHT 10 IITNT EATI GHAT T G
TTE! TR THH HUATUH! TATATE P R0 TITIT TUSLHT T HUATY =T DI A Tl HUATUH! @IaTaT
THEAT T At fguer g |

faer amaawt TwA gfaem (Leave Encashment) :

FFIAIR] FHATY (AIHTEA] AR @R FHATOERS! (MIY=d =X T4 60 @1 afs=q g1 88 a¥F weda qgar
|1 92T 9¢1 ATl (a1 arqdal A dlie a9 SRl T4 a9 o1 @9 e A [@euH g |

gfsaa a¥ qun fawt fa=@r (Accumlated Earned Leave & Sick Leave) :

oo

FFIA Rl FHATOEEH B qd7 o0l a1 afs=a g7 88 TV (GAdTs arairad HHATAH! A4S TUH Afan
~ c c c © @ o ~ 5 ~
TAAH] ATATHT AT @ =i (Fa] qqael @= RIHAT q@l HH=r fo@r arqael e e Ad

RreTl 5 |
Sfaw i@ (Life Insurance Policy) :
[N

FFEAI fHfd 090 /0% /0 WeaT wfbefE #Eta Wil FHATORH! ghHT AMd aual dAfrdd dad el qi

(%) @ e qHATg qAT fAfq 000/ 0% /0 T fE FAT AT g Wl FHAKIERH EHAT TEId THAE (oHTS
G| F W AT 397 9 AT I GISHT Ik SHad SHIOR a9 YT g oA UHUES T HHET FedTurehT
HITET STEAT T A fTguar 3 |

THTETE AT TqeAT A

STFTEIE ATEATHIH! AT SHATATIAHT ATATTE! ATITHT SFFwT (Provision) T Hf faguar & |
JTEA T AGTEA A

AT T I Goet FAETIA (M T ATAR TGl L FT AP THATEETHT FTo@d T4 A1d [ s0aH § |
= Hifaew :

ATHATA, AR AT (8T, A 2 (68" TMAqH (i (oo gz7 T e I 8@ g1 a7 d@r Aides ;
(®) HATRT HEAAA AT F@EA At (Profit Commission Income Accounting Policy) :

HATHT FHATT ATFRTA AT FafaarT MEem aHifTs T8 Tiae! SATETAT a1 HATH HATT Gredgal TaHHaTe
forfea qwd= T WU AERATT FETE T AT fguer g |

@ AT SfeH SET A@rsA A

FFIHI ST U Q0% R, qAT &A1 [HTael 0%, SHINH AFAT ARGH SHIET 19 @g AT el $0 faerd
THH AT T Afd (U g | S AT TH THAAT e ST aedh qiged] AMde a9 AFaTl

El At gfaaeq 2099 /95 11 R0
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SATSA AT fAUHT g | ATEE AR SHHT TARAT TN THHATS T a7 qlegabl AT aUAT AT TATST
Hifq feruer g

@ o avEn arafaa smEg

T Ftafaar facia faaeer geerel Mafere aed (T ave T awdiad Jaee aum, &ofl ad1 J=are J™
AT AT AT @IS Aq ATATAT TCH G |

@) faa aeiEn gfead @=Ee

g @S A qFAFaT TR G |

(§) T afwYor ifd (Classification of Investment Policy) :

AATTH] [ETAT FIH TWH MRS Afad RN (T T aUaaT a¢l AUH Aty Ao
TRMHIRT TTHT T |7 AaT ATEehehl ATHIATE AT b AR ®IAT SE@TI Al [T3Ue 3 |

qEF arfife gfea@zd 099/ 9z 11939
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3ToRIdT 26

fadiar fdaroRdor Jodfoera oiar Adodeosl fwofiss

gEsTfaa afircass :

=[ThT AT ThRIAT & dldhl Nl - AW |

W{jﬁ giqagdm (Underwriting Commitments) - FFawicl ST el (Miiad M1 aled A7 JATId Fidagar
TATH |

AT IviTq q=aT ATEHATS ATHeb IUT QT TLehl T ATHebel QT THIBIL ALl - THUHT |

FHET a7 AHPH] THATE [GZUHT TATULT - TTATHT |

I AT - T FFIAI TR AT aTal (oo IuX foa Jol Fet ditaaeea AT GiRfa q91 TAee SaTdar
HET TR THN T Ih a1 A9 g7 qa a1ed & %,9%,%¥39/- 9% A@EHIS] a7 el q4d T0H 3 |

WM T atet et S TR qedrs i STaere TR ATERER
FFIAA TAHAETE AAF g7 AT ATATT THA qAT I HeaTgaaal (F9a%) of Iueed TATH ATATT aTall

THH UF FFI(epl dHid THAG] ATIRAT aca qedTgd T A1 ATAT TICaHT FHFAIeh HeePl THAH 494
ITLTAA & ATST THA STHIAT T diebl aTel A9 el TRUH 3 |

et avafamn st Hifwaar qun faamege - T9Ta |

Fai, STt qor R awafaent i afegwr afdEgr - Tae |

TMHIET Feafee EEH @T ol avRiaEeRt e

gdg e grafae @cd Yo T9UeH! - T |

fersht Tfeushr Feqfcehl SehrAT JIed THUHT - THTH |

T TN TR A qan faw/ Rt fae e averen dean, fafa, ofermon T @ a@a gae faaor

FTTHTRT o AR & T fegst T | AT fRat wfcoer
+FH (%) & (R
% Tl LR T Yl T Aebebl HUMT 91 a9 I - -
g = NEILREEEIR AR 24%,90,00,000|  q,5%E%,00,000
R) fa@m el qedl e 3%,54,00,000 39,30,00,000
3) ARG M BITHT Teblehl AT AT = =
¥ ATHIE® A B (FEFA FUS) AT AT 3,9% 99,599 4% 9,08 9%,589.4%
T A ) ufesre fafwde FFaiar Ha 90,55 99,000 4,40,38,000
R) ufeds fafHds Fruiews! AT SFTHET A Y4¥,9590,¥53.34 | 4¥,0599430.5%
3) faa vt "l faem ¥ 0Y, 00,000 324,00,000
a= ) I G FFH [, P I S - -
R) FEIH Sire=ae J9Te fd. 4,3%,000 _
ST 3,1%,00,3%, M ¥.2| ?,5%,4R,4%, ] ¥4

% Hisem fgae araramr qrafeaa S/ fadia deart @i afgas frae fram araedt sagw -

T qar facia GRoTERdT Wl S Hivard Hu-Tel fEare & fHe= (Reconcile) U, faxia geargeare Hivard
qUAT 97 YT AT g |

o / qdtaw & o o atet e arara awfean SmE / meiasa a99q afgaa fae fram awrdt s

e/ qAdmE 1 foaq faq ot feama avargwr #fe dWaE/ qAdme dare g 98 feqra e (Reconcile) iR
A(PUH G T AP FHAT (6419 (AT (Reconcile) B THATHT W F |

fowa TREAT AT gafdd o 0, fowmadt qan s afafaee aiferer s@tvm @ a@w
FHEIIE] B! AT STHT FIA{Teh! AT qravel (eeTaT qifepusel afet e weel 3 |

TRl ATtiR gfq@e 3089 /93 11 93
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fTHFRT TATR AT AATARET TEAeErT Afh AT AEATHT HTHT FILEAT :
I HIIHIHl TS T GAeIh G GEI(ead GRITEE Se1d THIH TWebl &

q. #fi T AEH T HHIA] [ATHES, SANTFITE, FISHAVET |

AT eohd TUHT GRITET 79 14 TUHT dEvag T8 a1 g7 FUAR (Arms Length Basis) &1 TTHT HHATIEGH]
qfes Sfaq T ard a9 a7 ® ¥ ¥¥ 885/~ F AT FRER JUH G (Tq 99 FHATAeRH qifed sfad S
AT & 3%,%4,403/— FRER FUH) |

e AT FEfaET geeTur faust ot fadt, ol qan sitfae

TATHT |

HFA F FTTHT THIUTTS JTo TN ATF, FAT Teql TehT THIUTTS Tl g9 St T, 4. T & avaeey faawomar and
At o132 FY AT AT ATTq T TLhT T T .. AT FThHET WORT A ¢

AA. 0% /009 FEAH! HT FTHT THTITS YT T FfhUaT J |

forat TRt SRRt afATOT T HIOT

FFIAA a9 ATIF FIwT RRAT T AHTIeRST TIATT: & 943,08 35 /- (Tq a9 fRAT T SwTeeda! afewTor
DR YUY ¥ 3R /-) R G |

fRal T HHTIeHH FRUET

%) AHAR! ATUTAT SHIF THH TETH |

@) AHTH ATUGHT dHTE T T |

) SRR dHE ST g TR |

o) fHTr@HT FEe TRUH Sfew FeEua |

HATAEH g atET Gl @t

TG AR aTAT AUCRET g AT @H W G |

TRt olwed wfim SRR 9T (Paid in advance), STERTT 9TW &9 atat (Call in arrears) ¥ W TRTH a¥ T
frerTem Anfygsr faewt faawon

GLll

foast gicg awafast 9 o @¥ T a9 af @ (Amortization) AfEuwT TR faawor ¢

FHEIATRT [T Elog TEIMTAT T a9 TFF & ¥3,%39,0%4 /- @F (Amortization) JRGUHTHT 79 a7 99 & 953903 /- 4T
@9 (Amortization) TS T |

FEFCAT WOHT TEAT A(ETHRT FIELHT @t
Eull

TqEF afie gfaaTd 099/ 9z 11 9°3
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5. qEAE, AR AFEEW fEE, @y ffae ammae fadim faavoree g T fawewer W oagms gwoaw
FAAFTEE :

F) AU d@E & AITH FATER WF F2 (Deferred Tax) &I 0T TETH TRTH G

(TFT & W)
difaa faawor smaw
ferazon 1 v (Carr;ing ST . I T FftRaa
Value) (Tax Base) (Difference Amt.)
fer geafa R9,¥%,5,059 R,¥R,%%,%3 3¥ %5, 410 | ¥ X LRalis)
e feraremadear e 3,0%,43,3¥9 - 3,05,43,3%¥q | N & q¥A
ST a2 R, ¥3 354 - R, ¥3 35U | BRM H g8
QTPTEIE STTETHIEh! ATNT Saen ,0% 4%, ¥\N - §,0% Y ¥\N | VR F g
AT AT AT AT 2,30,53&H - 3,30,5%,%39 | TR & g
FET 99,93,03,39c | WA & H
WA & R (JFAT X AT T &%, 30% o) 349,200,993
AT, Pl Rl WA Y FEIT 3,99,29,309
Tq 99 W F ST 9T TLH] 3R,%%,10%

@) o atafaer i faeer v et serar swtaw o FawmEe 0%R &7 HEw qY () SHIE
e AR TATE JAeTd THA @I AL, 0%3/5¥ FFEAAT @l ANUHI SHIST & 503,00 ATE dWT SHIST
TS | g9 INTHAT Wb ThHH ATATIT (A0 GHISTel AT Fqeled TEebl o |

M FHH AT, R0%5/0%% JIT 0% /088 W g&hye AT AT Tl afel Wl g9 91X (Unsubscribed
Right Shares) aTieaTe TaaTaTe forsl a7 ST sifehd Hed el a¢l I Aladwara TUH 7 | I aal
THA FET & q¥9SQL TAT ¥ §59% 999 T THT & ¥ §959,933 9% Rufgaw ofivear @eus g | a9
T TRl THW GG TIT A8 AT a0 TSI AT Iueted Wbl G |

") IUEH TR A A AR EH G

faraor THH

STHAT J9GTH a7 (ATITE 39, 089 FFHAT) : R %,95,%¥%,3%9100
NI AT T AT lhd SIGTH ATSTATAT A1 : q. §,03,¥5,53919
FIHa UL AT a1 IEeAT (e : T \9¥,R19 43RS

T T AE avar fag srEr Rrdenr sieredE S Sad e TRUST g9 (Td AT 9ihree ArEr
AT F99 97 & 9,035%3¥9/—) | Y I Afde Fuar fmr atafqare i fafs 09z /04 /03
TS T ANAIET 20(085 /%) T, Y8 TATHR .4, R008/00c HI =rdl wias fafar
faaomAT o weata Rie seddd SEUE R dWe q9T (TAHEde U g gl [eHIEeRHT S@rat
THH A Uk 99 Wwal ¢ 9HT 3R aRar el THH dd ®.5,0%4Y, Y90 4% Il TS F |

) afafaer faxier faecor qrasd afrerer fMaem &, W9 () FEINT & %%, ¥3,35Y ARHET ArEEre
AR SFaar T A= 99 A/ AT AR AT et RriEET @ g |

g o7 afafaer ffa 099 /0% /o5 @ TRy THINH faxie fgaerdT ATRT-AeEE fEe o aighis el
AT IueAed T@HHFN Q0 TfTerd HeT-fadta SIS Gaarsd U7 Mae aHiad T a9 Ah-A1aa feare
I ATSHIGH AT IJIASd THAAT Q0 Jiqerd HeT-foafd FeT GEareareus T Ik Hel-fadta sHrer
FEATT TIATT AT el ATH & 99,%%,%9,455 T9 q9 FIUH gRT 9 AT4F aUH arghigH Anil ITeed
THEHH! Q0 fqerd HeT-forafa SRISTHT GeaTsal Tqayare AUl AR g I9: THET &4 aal Td avare
HIUHT ATHRT & 99,%%,49,255 &I 90 Ted = T qidl A & %,25,00,450 FH 40 JiATd & 2%,50,0
5 HeT-fqufd ST Geamgual § | a9 RITEaT W THH AT e JarsiTe Al Jueed Wl G |

s dr afaiaer A FERe areedl M Meed F. 9% SHINE Il A1 g aE qeaed] qEee
T BEAHIT I AL HFIT Y T T GEATAT QIcAe® ad & <%,9%,¥3q AT AT FGqen

qET arfier gfeaad 009 /93 11 1%
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AT FIH WH G | G, T 99 FEOAI el AGUAS o [, (SaT g6 Ju farqes /dmfas fagrd
IAATHIE b [AHES) AR Tl T @G Tl Seq=dT aieqd gldl arqd ST Tl (A .
3,09,%3,200 ftRdTer AT I== ETed are=ar fa=madie g | =it Sfmr atafasr fafg 209y /0% /0% @
fgeT SHINT STk ST GRS T STEAT LT THH &, R,09 53,300 HIFETHIET AT AT TOUsrar a9
FIAT JIATIT HIH &l G |

Y& aTAT AT AiAfaer st S gverdl faxie faErer greaedt fefirer qar e fadia gfaeaeTae
(NFRS) a¥ITSTH T UH AFL TAT FHAT AE ATd! HATREE H T FH G Ith T HATHIH 40
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NETWORK/ BRANCHES

Biratnagar-R

Munalpath, Biratnagar-5, Morang
021-503130/031
biratnagar@nlgi.com.np

Birtamode-B
Birtamode-7, Jhapa
023-533825/ 023-535550
birtamode@nlgi.com.np
Dharan-B

Chhata Chowk, Dharan-1
025-537225
dharan@nlgi.com.np
Damak-B

Damak Chowk-5, Jhapa
023-585404
damak@nlgi.com.np
Itahari-B

Itahari-6, Purano Yatayat
025-587332
itahari@nlgi.com.np
Phidim-SB

Pachathar-1, Phidim
024-521094

phidim@nlgi.com.np

Pathari-EC

Pathari Sanishchare-1,
Pathari Bazaar, Morang
021-555867
pathari@nlgi.com.np

Dhankuta-EC

Hulak Tole-7, Dhankuta
026-590200
dhankuta@nlgi.com.np

Biratchwok-EC

Sundar Haraincha-9,
Biratchowk, Morang
021-548507
biratchowk@nlgi.com.np

Kakarbhitta-EC

Mechi nagar-6, Kakarvitta, Jnapa
023-563429
kakarvitta@nlgi.com.np

Gaighat-EC
Gaighat-11, Udayapur
035-422760
gaighat@nlgi.com.np

Birgunj-R

Link Road, Ghantaghar, Birgunj-16 , Parsa
051-520191

birgunj@nlgi.com.np

Janakpur-B

Bhanuchowk-1, Janakpur, Dhanusa
041-590561/041-590670
janakpur@nlgi.com.np

Sarlahi-SB
Lalbandi-7, Sarlahi
046-501620
sarlahi@nlgi.com.np

Chandranigahpur-SB

Chandrapur-4, Chandranigahpur, Rautahat
055-54006

chandranigapur@nlgi.com.np

Bardibas-EC
Bardibas-1, Mahotari
044-550640/41

Kalaiya-EC
Kalaiya-4, Bara
053-551806
kalaiya@nlgi.com.np

Simara-EC

Main Road, Jeetpur Simara-2, Bara
053-521297

simara@nlgi.com.np

Rajbiraj-SB

Sirha Road, Ram Mandir-7, Rajbiraj
031-530493

rajbiraj@nlgi.com.np

Lahan-SB

Lahan-3
033-562393
lahan@nlgi.com.np

Mirchaya-EC

Mirchaiya, Kutari Chowk-6, Siraha
033-550254
mirchaiya@nlgi.com.np

Lahan-TP
Lahan-2, Siraha

Head Office

Panipokhari-2, Lazimpat, Kathmandu
01-4418113, 01-4006625
info@nlgi.com.np

Kalanki-B

Kathmandu-14, Kalanki Chwok
01-5234543
kalanki@nlgi.com.np

New Baneshwor-B
Kathmandu-10, New Baneshwor
01-4494121
newbaneshwor@nlgi.com.np

Durbarmarg-SB
Durbarmarg-1, Kathmandu
01-4250641
durbarmarg@nlgi.com.np

Boudha-SB
Boudha-6, Kathmandu
01-4491541
bouddha@nlgi.com.np

Dhading-SB
Dhading, Nilkantha-5,
010-520779
dhading@nlgi.com.np

Battar-SB

Battar, Bidur-4, Nuwakot
010-560654
battar@nlgi.com.np

Gongabu-SB

Gongabu Abasiyachhetra, Kathmandu-26
01-4958941

gongabu@nlgi.com.np

Timure-EC
Gosaikunda-2, Timure, Rasuwa
timure@nlgi.com.np

Lagankhel-EC
Lagankhel-5, Lalitpur

Narayangadh-B

Bharatpur Height, Bharatpur Metropolitian -10, Chitwan
056-527843

narayangarh@nlgi.com.np

Parsa-SB

Khairahani-8, Parda, Chitwan
056-582536
parsa@nlgi.com.np

Lalitpur-R

Lalitpur, Lalitpur-10, Patan Dhoka
01-5520331

[alitpur@nlgi.com.np

Banepa-SB

Kavre, Banepa-10, Chardobato
011-663028
banepa@nlgi.com.np

Bhaktapur-SB
Sallaghari-1, Bhaktapur
01-6620247
bhaktapur@nlgi.com.np

Gwarko-SB
Gwarko-2, Lalitpur
01-5186034
gwarko@nlgi.com.np

Ekantakuna-SB
Ekantakuna-4, Lalitpur
01-5423083
ekantakuna@nlgi.com.np

Satungal-TP
Gurujudhara-10, Kathmandu

Hetauda-B

Nandsthan Marg, Hetauda Road-4, Makwanpur
057-521030

hetauda@nlgi.com.np

Manthali-SB
Manthali-2, Binita Chowk, Ramechhap
manthali@nlgi.com.np

Manahari-EC

Manahari Bazaar-7, Manahari
057-414166
manahari@nlgi.com.np

Palung-EC

Thaha-3, Palung, Makwanpur
057-400079
palung@nlgi.com.np

Kawasoti-SB

Sabhapati Chowk, Kawasoti-8, Nawalpur
078-540596

kawasoti@nlgi.com.np

Pokhara-R

Newroad, Pokhara-8, Kaski
061-553648
pokhara@nlgi.com.np

Lamjung-B

Lamjung, Besisahar-8, Narayansthan
066-520959

lamjung@nlgi.com.np

Baglung-SB

Traffic Chowk, Gulmi-2, Baglung
068-522660
baglung@nlgi.com.np

Waling-SB

Syangja, Waling-3, Waling Mode
063-442734
waling@nlgi.com.np

Gorkha-SB

Gorkha Mun-6, Haramtaari Chowk
064-420057

gorkha@nlgi.com.np

Dulegauda-SB

Sukla Gandaki-4, Dulegauda, Tanahun
065-414272

dulegauda@nlgi.com.np

Hemja-EC

Pokhara-25, Hemja Milan Chowk
061-400573

hemja@nlgi.com.np

Lekhnath-EC

Pokhara-27, Talchowk, Kaski
061-561907
lekhnath@nlgi.com.np

Damauli-EC

Byas-2, Bhetghat Chowk, Tanahun
065-564901

damauli@nlgi.com.np

Kusma-EC

Dhaneshwor, Kusma-6, Parbat
067-420107
kusma@nlgi.com.np

Beni-EC
Newroad, Beni-7,
069-520670
beni@nlgi.com.np

Lakeside-EC

Pokhara-6, Halan Chowk, Lakeside, Kaski
061-457860

lakeside@nlgi.com.np

Nepalgunj-R

Province-5, Lumbini, Surkhet Road, Nepalgunj-2
081-535163 & 081-530930
nepalgunj@nlgi.com.np

Bardiya-SB

Bardiya, Guleriya-6
084-420117
bardiya@nlgi.com.np

Kohalpur-SB
Kohalpur-11, Banke
081-540972
kohalpur@nlgi.com.np

Bhairahawa-R

Siddharthanagar-8, Bhairahawa, Rupandehi
071-573433

bhairahawa@nlgi.com.np

Butwal-B

Traffic Chowk-6, Butwal
071-547141
butwal@nlgi.com.np

Dang-B

Ghorahi-15, Mainroad, Dang
082-562605
dang@nlgi.com.np

Chandrauta-SB

Shivaraj-5, Chandrauta, Kalipbastu
076-540520
chandrauta@nlgi.com.np

Sunwal-SB

Sunwal-4, Nawalparasi
078-570547
sunwal@nlgi.com.np

Tulsipur-SB
Tulsipur-5, Dang
082-523475
tulsipur@nlgi.com.np

Tansen-SB

Makhan Tole-4, Tansen, Palpa
075-521671
tansen@nlgi.com.np

Bhalubang-TP
Rapti G.P. - 2, Katesh Nala, Dang

Salyan-B

Sharada-1, Shree Nagar, Salyan
088-400199
salyan@nlgi.com.np

Surkhet-SB

Birendranagar-6, Guddhapath, Surkhet
083-525091

surkhet@nlgi.com.np

Dailekh-SB

Narayan-1, Devekota Chowk , Dailekh
089-410248

dailekh@nlgi.com.np

Jumla/Chandannath-SB
Chandannath-5, Jumla
087-520504
chandannath@nlgi.com.np

Dolpa-SB
Thuli Bheri-3, Dolpa
087-550145

Rukum-SB

(Tribeni chowk) Musikot-1, Rumuk
088-530411

prukum@nlgi.com.np

Dhangadi-B
Sauraha-3, Dhangadi
091-417315
dhangadi@nlgi.com.np

Mahendranagar-SB

Mahendranagar Gali No-1, Bhimdatta-4
099-522221
mahendranagar@nlgi.com.np

Tikapur-SB
Tikapur-1, Kailali
091-561476
tikapur@nlgi.com.np

Dadeldhura-SB

Tuphandada, Amargadhi-5, Dadeldhura
096-410257

dadeldhura@nlgi.com.np

Attariya-EC

Mahendranagar Road, Attariya-2, Kailali
091-550917

attariya@nlgi.com.np

Jhalari-EC
Suklaphanta-10, Jhaleri, Kanchanpur
099-540174

Sukhad-EC
Ghodaghodi-1, Kailai
sukhad@nlgi.com.np
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